

July 2, 2024

Web 2024-9

MGEX Bylaws and Rulebook Update

The following updates have been made to the MGEX Bylaws and Rulebook:

Chapters/Section	Citation	Purpose
Bylaws	1.1., 2.1., 2.3., 2.5., 2.8., 2.16., 2.18., 3.1., 3.2., 4.2., 5.1., 5.2., 5.3., 5.5., 5.6., 5.7., 5.8., 5.9., 5.10., 5.11., 5.12., 6.2., 7.4., 7.5., 7.9., 7.10., 7.11., 12.3., 12.4., 12.5., 12.6., 12.7., 12.8.,12.9.	Bylaws amended to update certain committee composition requirements, clarify the roles of President and Chief Executive Officer, replace "Exchange" with "Company" where appropriate, and to account for the transfer of Company real estate.
Chapter 1	Board of Directors, Bulletin Board, Bylaws, Chairperson, Charter, Chief Executive Officer, Company, Exchange, Exchange Officers, MGEX, President, Secretary, Treasurer	Definitions amended to clarify the definitions and roles of the President and Chief Executive Officer, clarify various definitions of the Company, and make other administrative updates.
Chapters 15, 21, 27	1503.00., 2100.00., 2104.00., 2106.00., 2109.02., Resolution 210.01.F.	Rules and Resolution amended to include the role of Chief Executive Officer.
Chapter 21	2100.01., 2100.02., 2100.04., 2105.00.	Rules amended to reflect updated requirements applicable to Clearing Members and Clearing Member applicants seeking clearing privileges at MGEX and/or the designated contract markets for which MGEX provides clearing as a service.

These changes are available on the MGEX website at <u>www.miaxglobal.com</u>:

- 1. Click on "Our Markets"
- 2. Scroll down to "U.S. Futures" and click on "Rulebook" for the latest version of the MGEX Rulebook, or "Corporate Organization" for the latest version of the

MGEX Bylaws.

If you have any questions or problems accessing the MGEX Bylaws or Rulebook, please contact me at (612) 321-7169 or <u>lcarlson@miaxglobal.com</u>.

Sincerely,

Tayne S.

Layne G. Carlson, Secretary

MINNEAPOLIS GRAIN EXCHANGE, LLC

400 South 4th Street | 130 Grain Exchange Building | Minneapolis, MN 55415 612-321-7101



MINNEAPOLIS GRAIN EXCHANGE, LLC Bylaws

1.1. DEFINITIONS.

The following are Bylaws of the Company. Bylaws incorporate all defined terms of Chapter 1 of the MGEX Rules. MGEX Rules are separate from the Bylaws and codify Exchange rules.

2.1. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD.

Miami International Holdings, Inc. ("MIH") is the sole member of M 402 Holdings, LLC which in turn is the sole member of the Company (the "LLC Member"). The LLC Member has vested the power to manage, operate, and set policies for the Company exclusively in the Board of Directors. The number of Directors constituting the entire Board of Directors shall be a minimum of five (5) Directors elected by the LLC Member, consisting of not less than thirty-five percent (35%) individuals who qualify as Public Directors, and not less than one (1) individual who is a Market Participant. The LLC Member shall designate one of the Directors to serve as Chairperson of the Board and may also designate one (1) or more Vice Chairpersons.

The number of Directors may be fixed from time to time by the LLC Member at any time in its sole and absolute discretion, upon notice to all Directors subject to the minimum number provided for in this Bylaw. No decrease in the number of Directors shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent Director.

The LLC Member, in its sole discretion, may add, remove, or substitute Board members at any time, provided such action is in accordance with these Bylaws and Rules, including preserving the minimum Public Director threshold stated in this Bylaw 2.1. The LLC Member, it its sole discretion, may remove or substitute the Chairperson and any Vice Chairpersons at any time, provided such action is in accordance with these Bylaws and Rules.

2.3. POWERS OF THE BOARD.

The Board of Directors is the governing body of the Company and has the power to:

- A. Manage the business, affairs, and property of the Company;
- B. Provide, acquire and maintain suitable Company quarters and facilities;
- C. Review and approve the creation of and all appointments to standing and special committees recommended by the Chairperson;
- D. Review and approve the appointment of a President and Chief Executive Officer;
- E. Review and approve the appointment, titles and responsibilities of all Exchange employees above the level of department head;
- F. Designate and authorize specific appointed officers to act on behalf of the Board to execute contracts within specified limits;
- G. Appoint Counsel to the Board;

- H. Determine the commodities traded, the delivery months, Hours of Trading, the days of the contract month in which delivery may be made, and margin requirements;
- I. Declare any day to be a holiday, during which the Exchange shall not be open for business;
- J. Adopt, amend, or repeal the MGEX Charter, Bylaws, and Rules;
- K. Act in emergencies (See Bylaw 2.4.);
- L. Delegate any of its powers under these Bylaws to a Committee of the Board, Committee of the Exchange, or to any officer or employees of the Company, provided the delegation is not inconsistent with the Company's Charter, Bylaws, Rules, customs, or usages.

Any authority or discretion by these Bylaws vested in the Chairperson, President, Chief Executive Officer, or other officers or any committee shall not be construed to deprive the Board of such authority or discretion and, in the event of a conflict, the determination of the matter by the Board shall prevail.

2.5. BOARD DELEGATION TO OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY.

Each of the officers of the Company shall, unless otherwise ordered by the Board, have such powers and duties as customarily pertain to the respective office, and such further powers and duties as from time to time may be conferred by the Board, or by an officer delegated such authority by the Board. The Board may delegate the duties and powers of any officer of the Company to any other officer or to any Director for a specified period of time and for any reason that the Board may deem sufficient.

2.8. SPECIAL MEETINGS.

Special meetings of the Board may be called on a minimum of two (2) days' notice to each Director by the Chairperson, President, or Chief Executive Officer, and shall be called by the Secretary upon the written request of three (3) Directors then in office.

2.16. APPOINTMENT OF EXCHANGE OFFICERS, OTHER OFFICERS, AND EMPLOYEES.

The Board of Directors shall from time to time elect or appoint Exchange Officers, including a President, Secretary, and Treasurer, as well as other officers, including a Chief Regulatory Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, Chief Risk Officer, and such other officers or employees as in its judgment may be necessary. The Board of Directors may assign any title to any of such other officers or employees as it deems advisable. The Board of Directors may prescribe the duties and fix the compensation of all such officers and employees, and all such officers and employees shall hold office or be employed during the will of the Board of Directors.

2.18. AFFIRMATIVE OBLIGATION TO NOTIFY COMPANY OF CHANGE IN ELIGIBILITY TO SERVE ON BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Applicants for and members of the Board of Directors have an affirmative obligation to promptly notify the Company if at any time there is a change in his or her eligibility to serve.

3.1. ADOPTION OR AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS AND RULES: PROCEDURE.

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to adopt, amend, or repeal any MGEX Bylaw or Rule. The Board may delegate its authority to adopt, amend, or repeal any MGEX Bylaw or Rule to a Committee of the Board or to one or more officers or employees of the Company.

3.2. ADOPTION OR AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS AND RULES: DATE EFFECTIVE.

Unless specifically provided otherwise by the Board of Directors or its designee, MGEX Bylaws and Rules shall become effective as of the first business day following the date that the Company publishes the amendment on its website.

4.2. SPECIAL MEETINGS.

Special meetings of the LLC Member, for any purpose or purposes, may be called by the Chairperson, the Board, the President, or the Chief Executive Officer, and shall be called by the Secretary at the request in writing of the LLC Member. Written notice of a special meeting stating the place, date and hour of the meeting and the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given to the LLC Member not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting. Business transacted at any special meeting of the LLC Member shall be limited to the purpose(s) stated in the notice of the meeting.

5.1. PRESIDENT.

The Board may elect a President of the Company. The President shall perform the duties usually incident to the office and such other and special duties as are prescribed by the Board of Directors, or by the Bylaws and Rules. The Board may confer upon the President other responsibilities as warranted.

5.2. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER.

The Board may elect a Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") of the Company. The CEO shall perform the duties usually incident to the office and such other and special duties as are prescribed by the Board of Directors, or by the Bylaws and Rules. The Board may confer upon the CEO other responsibilities as warranted.

5.3. SECRETARY.

The Secretary shall perform the duties usually incident to the office and such other and special duties as are prescribed by the Board of Directors, President, CEO, or by the Bylaws and Rules.

5.5. TREASURER.

The Treasurer shall perform such duties as prescribed by the Board of Directors, President, CEO, or by the Bylaws and Rules.

5.6. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT.

The Board of Directors, as soon as possible after the close of the fiscal year of the Company, shall cause to be prepared a full and complete statement of the financial condition of the Company and of its operations for the previous fiscal year.

5.7. FINANCING.

The Company shall have the authority to establish fees and charges necessary to meet the financial obligations of the Company. Fees and charges shall be remitted at such times and in such manner as the Company may prescribe.

5.8. FUNDS AND SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY.

The funds of the Company shall be deposited in the name of the Exchange in a bank or banks, as designated from time to time by the Board of Directors. Securities and other valuable papers belonging to the Company shall be secured as designated from time to time by the Board of Directors.

5.9. EXPENDITURE OF THE FUNDS OF THE COMPANY.

The funds of MGEX shall be under the management and control of the Company, and no funds belonging to MGEX shall be expended unless such expenditure has been authorized by the Exchange Officers or the Board of Directors.

5.10. INVESTMENT OF FUNDS.

The Board of Directors shall monitor the investment of funds belonging to the Company.

5.11. BORROWING OF MONEY.

The Board of Directors, on the affirmative vote of at least one half (1/2) of the total number of Directors, permitted under **Bylaw 2.1.**, may borrow money for and on behalf of the Company, for any period of time and on such terms and with such security or mortgage, all as the Board may determine necessary for business purposes.

5.12. EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS, SIGNATURES ON PAPERS, CHECKS, ETC.

Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Bylaw, all deeds, mortgages, satisfactions of mortgages, contracts for the conveyance of land, leases, bills payable, promissory notes and other written promises to pay money, corporate contracts of all kinds, checks and drafts drawn on bank accounts standing in the name of the Company shall be executed or signed in the name of the Company by the President, CEO, or such other officer, director or employee as the Board of Directors shall from time to time designate.

PROVIDED, however, that a check or checks, signed as provided above, to cover the total payroll of the Company for any specified period of time may be deposited to the credit of the Company in a special bank account, which shall be designated as a Payroll Account; checks or drafts drawn on such Payroll Account to cover salaries or wages due to individual officers or employees of the Company may be signed in such manner as the Board of Directors may from time to time direct; and

PROVIDED FURTHER, that contracts for the purchase of supplies and equipment necessary and incident to the usual and ordinary operations of the business of the Company may be executed in the name of the Company in such manner as the Board of Directors may from time to time direct.

Except as otherwise provided by the Bylaws, all other papers and documents of all kinds, including certificates, cards, licenses, etc., shall be executed or signed in the name of the Company in such manner as the Board of Directors shall from time to time direct.

6.2. CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER.

The Chief Compliance Officer shall report to the President and CEO and execute the duties and responsibilities required by CFTC Regulation 17 CFR Part 39, as amended.

7.4. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE.

There shall be established a Committee of the Board of Directors to be known as the Executive Committee which shall be composed of at least three (3) Directors. Meetings of the Executive Committee shall be held at such time and place as may be designated by the Executive Committee. The Chairperson of the Board shall be the Chairperson of the Executive Committee and shall have voting privileges.

The Committee shall have the duty and power to act on behalf of the Board of Directors when an emergency exists or when the Board is otherwise unable to reach quorum or convene in a timely manner.

7.5. AUDIT COMMITTEE.

There shall be established a Committee of the Board of Directors to be known as the Audit Committee which shall be composed of at least three (3) Directors elected by the Board of Directors. A majority of the members of the Committee shall be Public Directors.

The Audit Committee shall perform the following primary functions, as well as such other functions as may be specified by the Board: (i) provide oversight over the Company's financial reporting process and the financial information that is provided to the LLC Member and others; (ii) provide oversight over the systems of internal controls established by management and the Board and the Company's legal and compliance process; and (iii) direct and oversee all the activities of the Company's internal audit function, including but not limited to management's responsiveness to internal audit recommendations.

7.9. NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE.

There shall be established a Committee of the Board of Directors to be known as the Nominations Committee which shall be composed of at least three (3) Directors, including the Chairperson of the Board. A majority of the members of the Committee shall be Public Directors. The Nominations Committee shall each be elected on an annual basis by vote of the LLC Member. The chair of the Nominations Committee shall be a Public Director. The Nominations Committee shall identify individuals qualified to serve on the Board. The Nominations Committee shall nominate candidates for election to the Board and all other vacant or new Director positions on the Board, and the LLC Member shall elect Directors from such nominated candidates. The Nominations Committee, in making such nominations, is responsible for ensuring that candidates meet the compositional requirements of these Bylaws. The Nominations Committee shall meet in advance of the LLC Member's election of Directors, unless stated otherwise.

7.10. HARD RED SPRING WHEAT COMMITTEE.

There shall be established a Committee of the Exchange to be known as the Hard Red Spring Wheat ("HRSW") Committee. It shall be composed of at least seven (7) Market Participants of the Exchange.

The Committee shall have the duty and power to review and recommend MGEX Rules governing HRSW and other agricultural markets, including but not limited to contract specifications and delivery procedures.

7.11. CASH MARKETS COMMITTEE.

There shall be established a Committee of the Exchange to be known as the Cash Markets Committee. It shall be composed of at least of seven (7) Market Participants that are employed by entities having cash trading privileges pursuant to MGEX Rules.

The Committee shall have the duties and powers to:

- A. Review and recommend MGEX Rules governing the cash markets.
- B. Monitor cash market activity to ensure orderly trading and efficient price discovery.
- C. Approve guidelines for reporting of cash market activity to appropriate agencies.

12.3. RESERVED.

12.4. RESERVED.

12.5. FISCAL YEAR.

The fiscal year of the Company shall be as determined from time to time by the Board.

12.6. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND OTHERS.

The Company shall indemnify its directors, officers and committee members against such expenses and liabilities, in such manner, under such circumstances, and to such extent, as required or permitted by Delaware Limited Liability Company Act § 18-108 or as required by other provisions of law.

The Company shall advance expenses in such manner, under such circumstances, and to such extent, as required or permitted Delaware Limited Liability Company Act § 18-108. The provisions of this Section are not intended to limit the ability of any person to receive advances as an insured under any insurance policy maintained by the Company.

The Company may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, committee member or employee against any liability asserted against and incurred by such person in or arising from such capacity, whether or not the Company would otherwise be required to indemnify the person against the liability.

The Company shall also abide by all other controlling provisions of Delaware Limited Liability Company Act § 145.

12.7. MEMBERSHIP IN OTHER ASSOCIATIONS: DELEGATES TO MEETINGS.

At the discretion of the Board of Directors, the Exchange may become a member of other associations or organizations, membership in which in the opinion of said Board will be beneficial to the Exchange. The Board of Directors may appoint delegates or representatives to commercial or deliberative meetings at which it may desire to have the Exchange represented. The Board may, at its discretion, authorize the payment (from the general funds of the Company) of the dues payable to such associations and of the expenses incurred by such delegates or representatives in attending such meetings.

12.8. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

A member of the Board of Directors and certain other committees must abstain from deliberating and voting on matters when there is a potential personal or financial conflict of interest. This Bylaw describes how and when the conflict of interest will be determined. Additional and broader conflicts of interest provisions apply to the Disciplinary Committee and the Hearing Committee. (See Bylaws 8.2. and 9.2.)

- A. Definitions. For purposes of this Bylaw the following definitions shall apply:
 - 1. The term "family relationship" of a person shall mean the person's spouse, former spouse, parent, stepparent, child, stepchild, sibling, stepbrother, stepsister, grandparent, grandchild, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, or in-law.
 - 2. The term "governing board" shall mean the Board of Directors, Committees of the Board of Directors and Committees of the Exchange authorized to take action or to recommend the taking of action on behalf of the Company.
 - 3. The term "member's affiliated firm" shall mean a firm in which the member is an employee or a "principal," as defined in CFTC Regulation 3.1(a).
 - 4. The term "named party in interest" shall mean a person or entity that is identified by name as a primary subject of any material matter being considered by a governing board.
 - 5. The term "significant action" shall mean any of the following types of actions or changes that are implemented without the Commission's prior approval:
 - a. Any actions or changes which address an "emergency" as defined in CFTC Regulation 1.41(a)(4)(i) through (iv) and (vi) through (viii); and,

- b. Any changes in margin levels that are designed to respond to extraordinary market conditions such as an actual or attempted corner, squeeze, congestion or undue concentration of positions, or that otherwise are likely to have a substantial effect on prices in any contract traded at the Exchange; but shall not include any Bylaw or MGEX Rule not submitted for prior CFTC approval because such Bylaw or MGEX Rule is unrelated to the terms and conditions of any contract traded at the Exchange.
- B. Named Party in Interest Conflict.
 - 1. Prohibition. No member of a governing board shall knowingly participate in such body's deliberations or voting in any matter involving a named party in interest where such member: (a) is a named party in interest; (b) is an employer, employee or fellow employee of a named party in interest; (c) is associated with a named party in interest through a broker association; (d) has a family relationship with a named party in interest; or, (e) has any other significant, ongoing business relationship with a named party in interest, excluding relationships limited to executing futures or option transactions opposite each other or to clearing futures or options transactions through the same Clearing Member.

If the member's only relationship with a named party in interest is through a broker association not established for the purpose of sharing profits and losses, then the prohibition shall not apply. Furthermore, if a named party in interest is one or part of a group of similar persons or entities that is the subject for general deliberation and voting, such as approval for regularity or membership, and there is no material issue of dispute involving a named party in interest, then the prohibition shall not apply.

- 2. Disclosure. Prior to consideration of any matter involving a named party in interest, each member of the deliberating body who does not choose to abstain from deliberations and voting shall disclose to the Department of Audits and Investigations whether such member has one of the relationships listed in paragraph B.1. of this Section 12.8 of the Bylaws with a named party in interest.
- 3. Procedure and Determination. Company Staff shall determine whether any member of the deliberating body is subject to a conflicts restriction under this paragraph B. Such determination shall be based upon a review of the following information:
 - a. information provided by the member pursuant to paragraph B.2. above, and
 - b. any other source of information that is held by and reasonably available to the Company.
- C. Financial Interest in a Significant Action Conflict.
 - 1. Prohibition. No member of a governing board shall participate in such body's deliberations and voting on any significant action if such member

knowingly has a direct and substantial financial interest in the result of the vote based upon either Exchange or non-Exchange positions that could reasonably be expected to be affected by the significant action under consideration, as determined pursuant to this Bylaw.

- 2. Disclosure. Prior to consideration of any significant action, each member of the deliberating body who does not choose to abstain from deliberations and voting shall disclose to the Department of Audits and Investigations position information that is known to such member, with respect to any particular month or months that are under consideration, and any other positions which the deliberating body reasonably expects could be affected by the significant action, as follows:
 - a. gross positions held at the Exchange in the member's personal accounts or "controlled accounts," as defined in CFTC Regulation 1.3(j);
 - gross positions held at the Exchange in proprietary accounts, as defined in CFTC Regulation 1.17(b)(3), at the member's affiliated firm;
 - c. gross positions held at the Exchange in accounts in which the member is a principal, as defined in CFTC Regulation 3.1(a);
 - d. net positions held at the Exchange in "customer" accounts, as defined in CFTC Regulation 1.17(b)(2), at the member's affiliated firm; and
 - e. any other types of positions, whether maintained at the Exchange or elsewhere, held in the member's personal accounts or the proprietary accounts of the member's affiliated firm, that reasonably could be affected by the significant action.
- 3. Procedure and Determination. Company Staff shall determine whether any member of the deliberating body is subject to a conflicts restriction under this paragraph C. based upon a review of the most recent large trader reports and clearing records available to the Company, information provided by the member with respect to positions pursuant to paragraph C.2. of this Bylaw, and any other source of information that is held by and reasonably available to the Company, taking into consideration the exigency of the significant action being contemplated.
- D. Deliberation Exemption.
 - 1. Any member of a governing board who would otherwise be required to abstain from deliberations and voting pursuant to paragraph C of this Section 12.8 of the Bylaws may participate in deliberations, but not voting, if the deliberating body, after considering the factors specified below, determines that such participation would be consistent with the public interest; provided, however, that before reaching any such determination the deliberating body shall fully consider the position information specified

in paragraph C.2. and C.3. of this Section 12.8 of the Bylaws, which is the basis for such member's substantial financial interest in the significant action that is being contemplated.

- 2. In making its determination, the deliberating body shall consider;
 - a. whether the member's participation in deliberations is necessary to achieve a quorum; and
 - b. whether the member has unique or special expertise, knowledge or experience in the matter being considered.
- E. Documentation. The minutes of any meeting to which the conflicts determination procedures set forth in this Bylaw apply, shall reflect the following information:
 - 1. the names of all members who attended the meeting in person or who otherwise were present by electronic means;
 - 2. the name of any member who voluntarily recused himself or herself or was required to abstain from deliberations and/or voting on a matter and the reason for the refusal or abstention, if stated; and
 - 3. information on the position information that was reviewed for each member if applicable and available.

12.9. NONPUBLIC INFORMATION, EMPLOYEE TRADING PROHIBITION, AND IMPROPER USE OR DISCLOSURE.

For purposes of this Bylaw, "material" and "non-public information" shall be defined by CFTC Regulation 1.59(a).

Employees of the Exchange, as defined by CFTC Regulation 1.59(a), are prohibited from:

- A. Trading, directly or indirectly, in any commodity interest traded on or cleared by the Exchange.
- B. Trading, directly or indirectly, in any commodity interest traded on or cleared by a contract market, swap execution facility, or clearing organization other than the Exchange and in any commodity interest traded on or cleared by a linked exchange if the employee has access to material non-public information concerning such commodity interest.
- C. Disclosing to any other person any material, non-public information which such employee obtains as a result of his or her employment at the Exchange where such employee has or should have a reasonable expectation that the information disclosed may assist another person in trading any commodity interest; provided, however, that this Rule does not prohibit disclosures made in the course of any employee's duties, or disclosures made to another self-regulatory organization, linked exchange, court of competent jurisdiction or representative of any agency or department of the federal or state government acting in his or her official capacity.

No officer, member of the Board of Directors or member of any committee shall use or disclose, for any purpose other than the performance of such person's official duties, material, non-public information obtained as a result of such person's office or participation on the Board of Directors or any committee.

MINNEAPOLIS GRAIN EXCHANGE, LLC Rules

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OR BOARD: The Board of Directors of the Minneapolis Grain Exchange, LLC.

BULLETIN BOARD: The Official Bulletin Board at <u>www.miaxqlobal.com</u>.

BYLAWS: The Bylaws of the Minneapolis Grain Exchange, LLC.

CHAIRPERSON: The Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Minneapolis Grain Exchange, LLC.

CHARTER: The certificate of formation of the Minneapolis Grain Exchange, LLC as amended from time to time.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, also may be referred to as the "CEO".

COMPANY: Refers to the Minneapolis Grain Exchange, LLC, also referred to as "Exchange" or "MGEX" and may refer to the Exchange Officers and authorized employees of the Exchange, as applicable.

EXCHANGE: Refers to the Minneapolis Grain Exchange, LLC, also referred to as "Company" or "MGEX" and may refer to the Exchange Officers and authorized employees of the Exchange, as applicable.

EXCHANGE OFFICERS: Exchange Officers are designated by the Board from time to time.

MGEX: Refers to the Minneapolis Grain Exchange, LLC, also referred to as "Exchange" or "Company" and may refer to the Exchange Officers and authorized employees of the Exchange, as applicable.

PRESIDENT: The President of the Company.

SECRETARY: The Secretary of the Company.

TREASURER: The Treasurer of the Company.

1503.00. BONA FIDE HEDGING TRANSACTIONS AND POSITIONS.

- A. **General Definition.** Bona fide hedging transactions and positions shall mean transactions or positions in option contracts, where such transaction or positions normally represent a substitute for transactions to be made or positions to be taken at a later time in a physical marketing channel, and where they are economically appropriate to the reduction of risks in the conduct and management of a commercial enterprise; and where they arise from:
 - 1. The potential change in the value of assets that a person owns, produces, manufactures, processes or merchandises or anticipates owning, producing, manufacturing, processing or merchandising.
 - 2. The potential change in the value of liabilities that a person owes or anticipates incurring.
 - 3. The potential change in the value of services that a person provides, purchases or anticipates providing or purchasing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no transactions or positions shall be classified as bona fide hedging for the purposes of exceeding the speculative limits unless their purpose is to offset price risks incidental to commercial cash or spot operations and such positions are established and liquidated in an orderly manner in accordance with sound commercial practices and unless the provisions of Paragraphs B., C. and D. of this Rule and Exchange **Rule 1504.00. A., B., C.** and **D.** have been satisfied.

- B. **Enumerated Hedging Transactions.** The definition of bona fide hedging transactions and positions in Paragraph A. of this Rule includes, but is not limited to, the following specific transactions and positions:
 - 1. Sales of call options or purchases of put options on a contract market for any commodity that does not exceed in quantity:
 - a. Ownership or fixed-price purchase of the same cash commodity by the same person.
 - b. Twelve (12) months' unsold anticipated production of the same commodity by the same person provided that no such position is maintained in any contract month during the five (5) last trading days of that contract month.
 - 2. Purchases of call options or sales of put options on a contract market for any commodity that does not exceed in quantity:
 - a. The fixed-price sale of the same cash commodity by the same person;

- b. The quantity equivalent of fixed-price sales of the cash products and by-products of such commodity by the same person;
- c. Twelve (12) months' unfilled anticipated requirements of the same cash commodity for processing, manufacturing or feeding by the same person, provided that such transactions and positions in the five (5) last trading days of any one (1) contract month do not exceed the person's unfilled anticipated requirements of the same cash commodity for that month and for the next succeeding month.
- 3. Sales and purchases of options described in Paragraphs B.1 and B.2 of this Rule may also be offset other than by the same quantity of the same cash commodity, provided that the fluctuations in value of the commodity or contract that is the object of the option contract are substantially related to, and do not exceed, the fluctuations in value of the actual cash position, and provided that the positions in any one (1) contract month shall not be maintained during the five (5) last trading days of that contract month.
- C. **Nonenumerated Cases.** Upon specific request made in accordance with Exchange **Rule 1504.00.D.** the President or Chief Executive Officer may recognize transactions and positions other than those enumerated in Paragraph B. of this Rule as bona fide hedging in such amounts and under such terms and conditions as he may specify in accordance with the provisions of Exchange **Rule 1504.00.** below. Such transactions and positions may include, but are not limited to, purchases or sales of options on any contract market by an agent who does not own or who has not contracted to sell or purchase the offsetting cash commodity at a fixed price, provided that the person is responsible for the merchandising of the cash position that is being offset.
- D. **Double Hedging.** No cash market position shall be deemed to be hedged simultaneously by both futures and options positions.

2100.00. SCOPE OF CHAPTER AND REQUIREMENTS FOR CLEARING.

For purposes of these Chapter 21 Rules, unless specifically stated otherwise, all relevant requirements and procedures set forth by the Exchange herein will apply to all contracts cleared by the Clearing House, including those executed on a different designated contract market.

All Futures or Options transactions shall be submitted to the Clearing House to be cleared. The Clearing House shall, through the process of novation, be substituted as, and assume the position of, seller to the buyer and buyer to the seller of the relevant number of Exchange or marketplace contracts upon the successful matching of trade data submitted to the Exchange by the Clearing Members on the long and short sides of a trade. Upon such substitution, each Clearing Member shall be deemed to have bought the contracts from or sold the contracts to the Clearing House,

as the case may be, and the Clearing House shall have all the rights and be subject to all the liabilities of such Clearing Member with respect to such transaction. Transactions can only be offset against one another through position/trade reporting by a Clearing Member to the Clearing House.

Clearing Members shall submit all information required by the Clearing House, including but not limited to legal entity identifiers, when available. Additionally, it shall be the duty of each Clearing Member initiating, accepting or executing a transaction for Futures or Options under MGEX Rules to submit each such transaction using the clearing system to the Clearing House. Transactions shall be submitted at times determined by the Exchange (see **Resolution 2101.00.C.**). Clearing Members must submit all required transaction data, including but not limited to the following information:

- A. Date of transaction.
- B. Clearing Member code (alphanumeric as assigned by the Exchange) and type of account.
- C. Type of account or origin (Regular (R) or Segregated (S)).
- D. Customer type indicator (CTI) as defined below:
 - CTI 1. Transactions initiated and executed by an individual Market Participant for his/her own account, for an account he/she controls, or for an account in which he/she has ownership or financial interest.
 - CTI 2. Transactions executed for the proprietary account of a Clearing Member.
 - CTI 3. Transactions where a Market Participant executes for the personal account of another Market Participant, for an account the other Market Participant controls or for an account in which the other Market Participant has ownership or financial interest.
 - CTI 4. Any transaction not meeting the definition of CTI 1, 2 or 3.
- E. Quantity, commodity, contract month or expiration month, price or premium, whether the transaction involved a put or a call, strike price, buy or sell.
- F. Both the buying and selling Market Participant's identifier (trader ID/Member mnemonic) and the opposite Clearing Member's symbol.
- G. Transaction time to the minute.
- H. Indicators for the type of transaction (e.g., cash exchange; office transfer*; spread; delivery; exercise; risk exchange).

- * For office transfers, open and close information for the position (open (O), close (C)) must be submitted.
- I. Account number and identification. (For initial set-up and new accounts, provide a listing of account name, type, and position. This information will be available to the President, Chief Executive Officer, and designated MGEX personnel only).
- J. Any other information required by the Clearing House.

The Clearing House shall match the trades as submitted and shall list for each Clearing Member its cleared trades and unmatched trades. A recapitulation statement shall be produced, showing updated contract positions and settling all matched trades to the official settling prices. After completion of the clearing process, the Exchange shall notify each Clearing Member as to the net pay or collect amounts due by account (Regular and/or Segregated). Such amounts shall be submitted by wire transfer of funds or other acceptable method. Amounts due to the Exchange shall be submitted at times determined by the Exchange (see **Resolution 2101.00.C.**). All clearing statements shall be disseminated by the Exchange to each Clearing Member's designated contact.

If the report of a trade by a Market Participant does not correspond to the report of the other party to the trade, the Clearing House shall reject the trade and notify both Clearing Members showing the discrepancy of the reports. The Clearing Members must thereafter submit corrections to the Clearing House at times determined by the Exchange (see **Resolution 2101.00.C.**).

It shall be the primary responsibility of the Clearing Member to see that all trades are resolved. Each Clearing Member shall designate a person or persons to be available and responsible for reconciling the Clearing Member's unmatched trades. Failure to have a qualified representative available shall constitute negligence in the determination of responsibility for any unmatched trades.

If a Clearing Member, or one of its Affiliated Entities, has access to the Federal Reserve discount window, it shall notify the Clearing House if such access has been suspended, revoked, removed, terminated, or otherwise limited in any way as soon as practicable.

2100.01. ELECTRONIC TRADING SYSTEM CLEARING.

In addition to compliance with the applicable Rules in this Chapter, all transactions for Futures or Options traded on the Electronic Trading System or other designated contract market MGEX clears contracts for shall be submitted to the Clearing House for clearing. Submission of the data shall be at times determined by and in a format approved by the Exchange.

Any trade required for clearing and entered, executed and matched by the Electronic Trading System shall be submitted for clearing.

Upon acceptance of the submitted trade data and completion of the clearing process, a recapitulation statement of all trades and positions shall be produced and sent to the respective Clearing Member's electronic mail account.

Each Clearing Member shall be responsible for receipt and review of the recapitulation statement. The Exchange shall not be liable for the inability of a Clearing Member to receive a statement sent by the Exchange.

2100.02. CLEARING PRIVILEGES.

In order to clear trades at MGEX, a Clearing Member must be granted clearing privileges by the Exchange. Clearing privileges are only effective upon the Clearing Member's receipt of notice of MGEX Exchange Officer approval of the Clearing Member to clear contracts at MGEX. The Exchange may revoke said clearing privileges for cause at any time.

Clearing privileges may be granted and retained only if and when the terms and conditions set forth below have been met:

- A. A Clearing Member must have completed and remain in compliance with the terms contained in the Application for Clearing Privileges, the Clearing Member Agreement, and the MGEX Rules.
- B. A Clearing Member must be in good financial standing and meet the minimum financial requirements as may be determined by the Exchange.
- C. A Clearing Member must have the personnel, and computer hardware and software to effectively communicate with MGEX and otherwise conduct the business of clearing in an efficient manner.
- D. A Clearing Member must have provided all materials required by MGEX as a condition of Clearing Member approval, including but not limited to, documentation and financial resources.

In addition, a Clearing Member will only be granted clearing privileges to clear contracts listed on another designated contract market and cleared by MGEX if it meets all of the above requirements and the following terms and conditions:

- E. A Clearing Member must be registered as a futures commission merchant with the CFTC and NFA and meet all applicable requirements, including, but not limited to, requirements relating to minimum net capital, financial reporting, and recordkeeping.
- F. A Clearing Member must have completed and remain in compliance with the terms

contained in any applicable Clearing Member Agreement(s) for the designated contract market(s) for which it clears contracts.

2100.04. WITHDRAWAL OF CLEARING MEMBERS.

A Clearing Member that intends or desires to withdraw from clearing membership must first provide written notice indicating such intent to the Clearing House (the "Withdrawal Notice"). A Withdrawal Notice must be submitted by an individual who is duly authorized to act on behalf of the organization, and if the Clearing Member is approved by MGEX to clear for more than one designated contract market, the notice must indicate from which clearing membership(s) it is withdrawing. After a Clearing Member has delivered its Withdrawal Notice (including during any Cooling Off Period), it is subject to the following requirements and obligations:

- A. The Clearing Member must close out or transfer all open positions (Regular and/or Segregated accounts) to existing Clearing Members.
- B. The only transactions that may be submitted for clearing are those transactions used to transfer, terminate, liquidate, or otherwise reduce open positions and close out of contracts cleared by MGEX.
- C. The Clearing Member must satisfy and perform in full all obligations, financial and otherwise, to the Exchange and Clearing House.
- D. Any open investigations, disciplinary matters, or other regulatory issues must be closed.
- E. Any obligations to other Clearing Members and/or customers must be paid for or otherwise provided for.

A Clearing Member's withdrawal will be effective only after a Clearing Member has fully satisfied all of the above conditions and the Exchange has approved such withdrawal in writing (the "Withdrawal Date"). Following the Withdrawal Date, the Exchange will return the withdrawing Clearing Member's security deposit, as well as any other deposits or assets required by or available to the Clearing House, within sixty (60) days.

Any Withdrawal Notice issued by a Clearing Member will be considered irrevocable and clearing privileges may only be reinstated by satisfying all of the requirements set forth in **Rule 2100.02.**, including completion of a new Application for Clearing Privileges, execution of any applicable Clearing Member Agreement(s), and formal approval by the Exchange Officers.

2104.00. DEADLINES, FEES AND FINES.

The schedule of deadlines is subject to change at any time by the Exchange. The schedule of deadlines shall at all times be those requirements most recently adopted. The amount due for

errors or any other fees charged or collected by the Exchange shall be billed on a monthly basis unless otherwise specified by the Exchange.

If the offense becomes frequent, the President or his/her designee, or the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee, may call for additional permanent collateral or take such other action as is deemed necessary.

Any Clearing Member making an error in his/her daily statement to the Clearing House may be fined for each error made (see **Resolution 2101.00.C.**)

2105.00. SECURITY DEPOSIT.

Each Clearing Member shall deposit with the Clearing House as security for its obligations thereto such amount as determined by the Exchange. Each designated contract market that the Exchange clears for shall have a dedicated minimum security deposit determined by the Exchange. Each Clearing Member's total minimum required security deposit shall be determined by the Clearing House and based on which designated contract markets the Clearing Member is approved to clear. The form of such deposit shall also be determined by the Exchange may change the amount and form of such deposit as necessary. Deposits may be withdrawn on written request when a Clearing Member ceases to be a Clearing Member and the Exchange has determined that all contracts and obligations with the Exchange have been settled in accordance with **Rule 2100.04**.

2106.00. MARGINS.

The Exchange shall set minimum margin requirements at a level that it believes protects the interests of buyers and sellers and the Exchange. In addition, Clearing Members must identify categories of customers with heightened risk profiles, consistent with its risk management policies and procedures, and collect initial margin for each account with a heightened risk profile at a level that exceeds the clearing initial margin requirement determined by the Exchange by an amount commensurate with the risk presented by each account in accordance with CFTC Regulation 39.13(g)(8)(ii). Margin requirements are subject to change at any time but shall at all times be those requirements most recently adopted, publicly posted, and in compliance with the requirements of CFTC Regulation 39.13(g)(8), as amended.

The Exchange shall accept, as margin, cash or United States Treasury securities. Cash margin requirements shall be submitted by wire transfer of funds or other acceptable method approved by the Exchange. Cash and United States Treasury securities shall be submitted at times determined and posted by the Exchange. United States Treasury securities shall be maintained in multiples of \$1,000. The Exchange shall value securities as it deems appropriate. The President or his/her designee, or the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee may, at their discretion, require of any Market Participant a margin upon any or all of such Market Participant's open trades which are deemed unduly insecure or hazardous in such amount as deemed advisable. Calls for such margin shall be paid by the Clearing Member within one business day

or earlier if so requested. Further, the Exchange shall collect daily intra-day variations from Clearing Members apart from, and in addition to, any margin or daily settlement variation payments and collects.

Clearing Members called for margins under this Rule shall pay by the deadline announced by the Exchange. An extension of time for such payments can only be granted by the President or his/her designee or the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee. In such cases the extension of time so granted shall be noted on the written call, and a copy of said call shall be kept in the files of the Exchange.

Should a Clearing Member fail to deposit balances for additional margin as required in this Rule, or should the President or his/her designee or the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee deem the transaction of any Market Participant unduly insecure or hazardous, the Exchange may direct that the Market Participant close out all or a portion of the trades, or that the Market Participant transfer all or a portion of the trades to the books of another Clearing Member, as the situation may require. If such requests are not complied with within one (1) hour, the Exchange may, with the consent of the President or his/her designee or the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee, originate orders to transfer or close out all or a portion of the Market Participant's trades, as the situation may require. Any such action shall be taken with due consideration to the positions of customers.

All differences between the contract price reported and accepted and the price at which the property may be bought or sold as a consequence of a Market Participant's failure to fulfill the obligations as set forth in this and other Rules shall be included in the measure of losses against the Market Participant so failing, and the differences shall be calculated, adjusted and settled within the time and in the manner and form determined by the Exchange.

Any financial obligations owed by a Clearing Member to the Exchange, which remain outstanding after all the Market Participant's trades have been closed out, may be satisfied through the Market Participant's security deposit with the Clearing House or such other assets, collateral or pledges as necessary to satisfy the financial obligations.

2109.02. PROTECTION OF CLEARING HOUSE: DEFAULT BY A CLEARING MEMBER.

If a Clearing Member fails promptly to discharge any obligation to MGEX, its security deposits, its margins and performance bonds on deposit with MGEX, its collateral, and any of its other assets available to the Exchange shall be applied by the Exchange to discharge the obligation, provided that MGEX will not apply any collateral held in segregated customer accounts to any payment obligations arising from a default in a Clearing Member's proprietary account. Further, the Exchange may make immediate demand upon any guarantor of the Clearing Member. Upon demand and without waiting for application of all available assets of the Clearing Member or a formal accounting, such guarantor shall pay the Exchange by the time and date set by MGEX. Upon a Clearing Member Default, the Exchange may act immediately to attempt to transfer to alternate Clearing Members all customer positions and associated collateral (collateral held by the Exchange on behalf of the Defaulting Clearing Member for its customer if permitted).

If a default occurs in a segregated customer account, then the Exchange has the right to liquidate and apply toward the default all open positions and customer performance bond deposits in the account of the Defaulting Clearing Member. Accordingly, positions and collateral deposited by customers not causing the default are at risk if there is a default in their Clearing Member's segregated customer account. Following a default in a segregated customer account, MGEX can apply any excess proprietary funds and assets of the Defaulting Clearing Member. The Exchange shall be under no obligation to forward any variation pays or settlement funds to a Defaulting Clearing Member.

In addition to application of the available assets of the Defaulting Clearing Member (the priority of which is further described in **Rule 2109.03.**), the Exchange, President, Chief Executive Officer, Treasurer, Chief Risk Officer, or other designee may take any other actions that it determines necessary to protect MGEX or other Clearing Members. Such actions include, but are not limited to, actions authorized elsewhere within the MGEX Rules, the suspension of clearing privileges until revoked or reinstated by the Board or its designee, pursuit of legal action, retention of variation pays and settlement funds, and request for additional security deposit and/or performance bonds. The detailed implementation of the process of finalizing losses with respect to a Clearing Member Default, including the liquidation, allocation, auction or sale of positions or assets of the Defaulting Clearing Member shall be conducted by the Exchange in its sole discretion.

The Exchange, Board, committees, officers or employees, and any qualified third party, including another Clearing Member, authorized by the Exchange to act in the place of the Defaulting Clearing Member shall have no liability arising from a failure by a Clearing Member to discharge its liabilities; neither shall they be liable for actions taken pursuant to MGEX Rules, procedures, or actions allowed by law. The appointment of a qualified third party does not absolve a Defaulting Clearing Member of any of its obligations, and the actions of such qualified third party will be binding upon the Defaulting Clearing Member. Neither the Board, committees, the Exchange, nor any of its officers, directors, or employees, shall be liable for any losses, damages, or costs, including direct, indirect, incidental, and consequential damages, arising out of the performance or decisions of the qualified third party or Defaulting Clearing Member.

The Exchange may establish such procedures as necessary which prescribe in detail how the protections under the MGEX Rules will operate. Such procedures shall constitute part of the MGEX Rules.

RESOLUTION 210.01.F.

Pursuant to the provisions of Bylaw 2.3. the Board of Directors has adopted this Resolution.

Limited authority of the Board of Directors to amend MGEX Rules and to take emergency action is hereby delegated to Exchange Officers. Such authority includes, suspending or curtailing trading, amending Hours of Trading, imposing margin requirements, declaration of holidays, amending reportable position limits, price limits and intraday market restrictions, managing settlement procedures, open or closing periods, fees, forms, notices, deadlines, dress and decorum policies, minimum financial requirements, notification and reporting requirements, striking prices, cash market reporting, recordkeeping requirements, default procedures, give-up procedures, transferring customer contracts and margins, definition of emergencies, declarations of Force Majeure and action taken as a result of such declarations. The Exchange shall also have the authority to take such market action as may be directed by the CFTC. The President, Chief Executive Officer, and Chairperson of the Board of Directors may determine whether a Rule can be amended by Exchange Officers. Such amendments must be forwarded promptly to the Board of Directors.

Further, limited authority of the Board of Directors is hereby delegated to Exchange Officers to exercise certain other powers including amending transfer procedures, transfers, applications and cancellations, approving applications, renewals, or withdrawals for Regularity, approving applications for cash trading privileges and/or clearing privileges, establishing minimum filing and financial requirements, establishing and amending summary fine schedules, approving standing committee appointments, and amending the matching algorithm for the electronic trading system. Such approvals and changes must be forwarded promptly to the Board of Directors.

Limited authority of the Board of Directors is hereby delegated to MGEX risk management personnel, which includes such employees and/or officers as the Exchange, in its discretion, shall determine (collectively, the "MGEX Risk Team"), to independently exercise certain risk management powers and to be responsible and accountable for making risk decisions, including in crises and emergencies. The Board of Directors further assigns the MGEX Risk Team the responsibility for implementing the (i) default rules and procedures required by CFTC Regulations 39.16 and 39.35, (ii) system safeguard rules and procedures required by CFTC Regulations 39.18 and 39.34, and (iii) recovery and wind-down plans required by CFTC Regulation 39.39.